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Located in Aiken, South Carolina, this one and one-half story clapboard structure 
was built ca. 1855 by James Parsons Carrol!.

The front facade features a one-story piazza with six square columns and simple 
balustrades. The double entrance door features sidelights and transom and is 
flanked by a shuttered 6/6 window on each side. Above the piazza are three dormer 
windows with pediments, while to the immediate right is a sun-porch which was 
probably added during the 1930s. This central section (comprised of the piazza) 
is flanked by recessed side wings. These wings are additions made during the 1930s; 
at that time the original kitchen was adjoined to the left side, and a balancing 
wing was added to the right side. The right addition has a Georgian Period double 
door with sidelights and fanlight.

The rear facade has a double entrance door with fanlight and sidelights. (Because 
this entrance is more elaborate than that of the front, it is possible that this 
may have originally been the main entrance.) Two pairs of flanking pilasters 
appear to support a pediment with semicircular window which is located above the 
entrance foyer. On each side of the door, located between the pilasters, is a 
non-original 4/4 window. Also flanking the entrance are 6/6 shuttered windows 
whose size has also been altered. This entrance section is recessed while 
balancing wings project on each side. Adjacent to these wings are the additions 
which were made during the 1930s.

Windows are primarily 6/6 and some have louvered shutters. Two interior chimneys 
with corbeled caps pierce the gable roof.

Interior: The floor plan of the structure originally consisted of five rooms on the 
first floor. The entrance opens into one large room serviced by two fireplaces of 
notable design. (These mantels are said to have come from an earlier house near 
Winnsboro, South Carolina.) Behind this room is a central hall which contains the 
stairway. To the right of the hall is a pine-paneled sitting room and to the left is 
a dining room. The projecting wings located towards the rear of these rooms each 
contain a small room (the left side has been made into a kitchen).

Adjacent to these projecting wings are the additions which were made during the 
1930s. The original kitchen was adjoined to the left side and is now used as a 
bedroom. A balancing wing containing a large bedroom was added to the right side.

The second story contains two bedrooms.

Throughout the original portion of the structure the plaster walls and ceilings 
and heart pine floors are in excellent condition. The structure contains notable 
interior details including carved mantels, stair brackets, and moldings. In the 
1930s addition, elements from older structures that were compatible with the 
original design were used.
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Constructed ca. 1855, the Chancellor Carroll House was built by James Parsons Carroll, 
Chancellor of South Carolina and a noted attorney. The property on which Carroll built 
this structure (probably as a summer residence) was purchased from William Gregg, the 
important textile manufacturer. During the 20th Century, the house was owned by architect 
Willis Irvin, who designed several noted structures in Aiken.

James Parsons Carrol! (1809-1883) was a native of Charleston and moved to Edgefield as a 
child. Admitted to the South Carolina bar in 1830, Carroll was elected to the South 
Carolina House of Representatives in 1838. Between 1853 and 1854, he served in the 
South Carolina Senate and was re-elected to that body in 1858. The following year, 
Carroll was elected Chancellor of the Court of Equity and remained in that position until 
1868, when the office of chancellor was abolished by the new state constitution. In 
1860, Carroll served as a delegate to the Secession Convention and signed the Ordinance 
of Secession.

After the office of chancellor was abolished, Carroll practiced law in Columbia, South 
Carolina, where he served as chairman of the committee to collect testimony in relation 
to the destruction of the city during the War Between the States. Upon his death in 
1883, the Columbia Bar adopted several Resolutions of Respect:

James Parsons Carroll, the most distinguished member of the Columbia 
bar, has been removed by death from his place in our midst. ...The
Honorable James P. Carroll was the last surviving chancellor of South 
Carolina elected under the constitution of 1790.... ...a worthy
representative he was of the bar and bench of "old South Carolina." 
...his decrees as chancellor and opinions in the Equity Court of Appeals 
and in the highest court of South Carolina, the Court of Errors, rank 
him high among the judges of a State which was always justly proud of 
her judiciaryJ

Architect Willis Irvin ((l8^9-J950])owned the Chancellor Carroll House from the late 1920s 
until his death. Irvin Hesigned"several noted structures in Aiken and also planned 
the renovation of the Aiken County Courthouse. In the early 1930s, Irvin won a gold 
medal award for a design entered in the Southern Architectural and Industrial Art
_____________ (continued)

1. U. R. Brooks, South Carolina Bench and Bar, Vol. I (Columbia, South Carolina: 
The State Company, 1908), pp. 100, 111-112.
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Exhibition in Memphis, Tennessee, 
during his ownership.

Irvin made several additions to the Carrol 1 House

Architecture: Although the Chancellor Carrol 1 House has been altered through the 
years to meet the contemporary needs of its owners, the original fabric of the house 
has remained primarily intact. The many later additions have incorporated architectural 
elements from earlier periods into the overall design.
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Enclosed is a sketched floor plan of the Chancellor Carroll House in Aiken, 
South Carolina. As evident from the drawing, the original portion of the 
structure remains intact. (The interior features--including floors, walls, 
and moldings have also been preserved.)

During the 1930s additions which do not destroy the integrity of the original 
design were made to the structure. The addition on the left was the original 
kitchen building which was attached and converted into a bedroom. The additions 
on the right include a sunporch and wing with bedroom and bath. Both the interior 
and exterior designs of this wing are harmonious with the oldest portion of 
the structure. Furthermore, architectural elements from other 19th Century 
structures were used in its construction.
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